
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M.  
 

AGENDA 
 
 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING October 14, 2019 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
2. INVOCATION –Pastor Beth Staton, Zion United Church of Christ 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by Boy Scout Troop 488 and Cub Scout 

Pack 490 
 

4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 
held on September 23, 2019, as recorded and transcribed. 
 
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the work session meeting of 
Council held on September 30, 2019, as recorded and transcribed. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Sister City Advisory 

Board meeting held on April 9, 2019, as recorded and transcribed.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Civil Service 

Commission Meeting held on August 14, 2019, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Historic Preservation 
Commission meetings held on July 24, 2019 and August 28, 2019, 
as recorded and transcribed.  

D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 
meeting held on September 4, 2019, as recorded and transcribed.  
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

8. FOURTH READING and ADOPTION of Resolution No. 19-40, a resolution 
adopting the 2020-2024 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
 

9. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 19-47, a resolution establishing 



2 
 

guidelines for proposed developer initiated New Community Authorities. 
 

10. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-58, an ordinance approving a 
Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for Sawmill Delaware 
Investments to construct a new building (Innovation Center) at 109 
Innovation Court on approximately 6 acres zoned M-1 PMU (Light 
Manufacturing District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District). 
 

11. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-59, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by Grden LLC for Winterbrooke 
Place containing 263 single family lots on approximately 100.6 acres 
zoned R-3 PMU (One Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of Peachblow Road 
just east of the Belmont Place Subdivision.  
 

12. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

13. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22 
(G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential 
by State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public 
purpose and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information 
related to a request for economic development assistance. 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

























































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  8    DATE: 10/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-40 
 
READING: FOURTH    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2020-2024 FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
10/14/2019 UPDATE: At the Council CIP Work Session held on 9/30/19, it 
was asked the CIP be amended to include the foundation for the Strand Arch on 
Winter Street in 2020, and a traffic signal at Carson Farms Boulevard and US 
36.  The traffic signal study would take place in 2020 and construction in 2021. 
These changes are reflected in the two accompanying attachments. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Pursuant to Section 79 of the Charter, the CIP is to be submitted to City Council 
by August 15 and adopted no later than October 15.  Adoption is scheduled for 
Council’s October 14 meeting. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
An additional $50,000 added to the CIP for Street Improvements in 2020, 
$25,000 for the Strand Arch foundation work and $25,000 for the traffic signal 
study at Carson Farms. An additional $250,000 for Street Improvements in 2021 
for the construction of the signal at Carson Farms and US 36. This results in a 



negative fund balance in 2021 that will need to be addressed prior to the 
adoption of the 2021-2025 CIP. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the additional projects. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Updated General Fund Summary 
Updated Street Improvements 



RESOLUTION 19-40 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2020-2024 FIVE-
YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP). 

 
 WHEREAS, a revised Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan was prepared 
and submitted to City Council in accordance with Article XVII, Section 79 of 
the City Charter; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council has considered the proposed plan and has 
determined that it shall be the future public improvement plan for the City of 
Delaware; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article XVII, Section 80 of the City Charter requires that City 
Council adopt, by resolution, the Five-Year Capital Improvements Program on 
or before October 15; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council will review the 2020-2024 CIP at Work Sessions 
before October 14. 
 
 WHEREAS, Council discussed possible amendments to the plan which 
may be considered as part of the adopted 2020 budget.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the 2020-2024 Five-Year Capital Improvements 
Program for the General Fund, Airport, Fire, Police, Public Works, Parks, 
Equipment Replacement, Technology, Building Maintenance, Water, Sewer, 
Storm Sewer, Refuse, Parks Impact, Police Impact, and Fire Impact attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted as the official plan for future public 
improvements. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage.   
 
 
PASSED:     _____________________, 2019  YEAS ____     NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: __________________________     ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



                                                                            CITY OF DELAWARE

                                                                 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

                                                                    GENERAL FUND SUMMARY
                                                                                  2020 - 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

BALANCE FORWARD 750,000 112,037 (101,077) 38,803 967,559

REVENUES:

  INCOME TAX  (14% of  net 1% Collections) 2,147,657 2,233,563 2,322,906 2,415,822 2,415,822

  CITY HALL ANNEX RENT 78,000 78,000 78,000 78,000 78,000

     BALANCE PLUS REVENUE 2,975,657 2,423,600 2,299,829 2,532,625 3,461,381

EXPENDITURES:

   DEBT SERVICE

      2012 Streetscape ($2,542,516 through 2022) 269,904 261,067 263,538 0 0

      2019 City Hall/Annex (through 2034) 60,000 95,000 149,850 204,500 208,500

      2019 Software Systems (through 2024) 269,973 304,659 337,566 340,566 337,965

       TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 599,877 660,726 750,954 545,066 546,465

 AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR CAPITAL
   IMPROVEMENTS AFTER DEBT 2,375,780 1,762,874 1,548,875 1,987,559 2,914,916

  OTHER EXPENDITURES

      AIRPORT IMPROVEMENTS  (pg. 4) 0 0 1,307 0 0

      STREET IMPROVEMENTS  (pg. 7) 809,727 726,527 255,765 0 326,976

      PARK IMPROVEMENTS  (pg. 17) 350,000 63,000 208,000 60,000 190,000

      EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT (pg. 20) 833,016 779,424 735,000 600,000 650,000

      BUILDING MAINTENANCE  (pg. 28) 171,000 195,000 210,000 260,000 200,000

      UNANTICIPATED PROJECTS 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

     TOTAL OTHER EXPENDITURES 2,263,743 1,863,951 1,510,072 1,020,000 1,466,976

ENDING BALANCE 112,037 (101,077) 38,803 967,559 1,447,940



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
STREET IMPROVEMENTS

                                                                                2020 - 2024
 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

REVENUES:

  PERMISSIVE TAX (License Fee Fund) 432,280 436,603 440,969 445,379 449,832

  STATE LICENSE FEES 18,393 18,577 18,763 18,950 19,140

  STATE GASOLINE TAXES 90,900 91,809 92,727 93,654 94,591

  NEW GASOLINE TAXES 758,395 765,979 773,639 781,375 789,189

  NEW LICENSE FEES ($5) 0 223,500 225,735 227,992 230,272

  SIDEWALK ASSESSMENTS 221,930 96,630 96,330 84,670 75,000
    CIP Allocation 809,727 726,527 255,765 0 326,976

        TOTAL REVENUE 2,331,625 2,359,625 1,903,927 1,652,021 1,985,000

EXPENDITURES:      

   DEBT SERVICE

    Bonds - S. Houk Road (through 2022) 29,625 29,625 28,927 0 0

       TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 29,625 29,625 28,927 0 0

STREET RESURFACING 

     City Grant Match Street Resurfacing 180,000 355,000 355,000 180,000 430,000

     ODOT URP Street Resurfacing City Match 180,000 200,000 0 0 175,000

     City Street Resurfacing -

       Local Streets 800,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000

       Administrative/Inspection 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

       TOTAL STREET RESURFACING 1,210,000 1,505,000 1,305,000 1,130,000 1,555,000

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

     City Grant Match Transportation Improvements 235,000     

     Point Project City Funds 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

     Bridge Improvements 50,000  150,000   

     US 23/36 Exit Bin Wall Improvement 50,000

     Signal Improvements (APS/Safety/RRFB) 75,000 25,000 20,000 40,000 30,000

     Carson Farms Signal 25,000 250,000

     US 23/Springfield Branch Bridge Repair  150,000

     Curtis St. Intersection (Dev Trust City Share) 27,000

     Fiber System Expansion 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

     Hills-Miller Sidewalk (Dev Trust City Share) 55,000

     Downtown Sidewalk Repairs                  150,000

Strand Arch Foundation Work 25,000

     Sidewalk Improvements 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000

       TOTAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS 1,092,000 825,000 570,000 440,000 430,000

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,331,625 2,359,625 1,903,927 1,570,000 1,985,000



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  9    DATE: 10/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-47 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR PROPOSED DEVELOPER 
INITIATED NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITIES. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
City council directed Staff and a working group from Council (Councilman Jones 
and Councilman Shafer) to work on drafting guidelines related to any future 
proposed developer driven New Community Authority (NCA) in order to provide 
a framework for and basic expectations to developers as well as the 
administration and Staff when considering such proposals. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Proposed are guidelines for developer driven NCA’s.  The guidelines are indeed 
just that – guidelines rather than law.  They are intended to help developers 
understand the foundational expectations of the city for developer driven NCA’s, 
assist the Administration in working with the developer in this regard and allow 
City Council a basis from which to begin to evaluate a proposed NCA.  City 
Council would reserve the right to evaluate any and all proposed NCA on a case 
by case basis as they deem appropriate to the request.  However, setting a basis 
for expectations would provide needed guidance to all parties involved. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A        
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
These are new policy guidelines. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Councilman Shafer 
Councilman Jones 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-47 
 
 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR 

PROPOSED DEVELOPER INITIATED NEW 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITIES. 

 
WHEREAS, a New Community Authority (NCA) is a development tool in 

which a charge is placed on property and used to pay for development 
expenses, and 

 
WHEREAS, this charge appears on residents’ property tax bill which can 

impact residents’ view of their city tax burden and lead to calls to the city 
asking about the charge, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware currently has two city initiated New 

Community Authorities to pay for infrastructure installed by the City, and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council desires to establish guidelines for future 

developer initiated NCAs to provide advance notice to developers, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1.   City Council will apply the following guidelines in 
evaluating requests to establish a New Community Authority.  Council may 
deviate from these guidelines if it is in the best interest of the City: 
 

 
1. NCA will not generally be approved to reimburse for building cost of 

items already built/installed. 
 

2. NCA will not be approved to reimburse for the cost of items typically 
required to be paid by developer, including but not limited to on-site local 
roads and utility lines. 
 

3. The City will consider approving NCAs to cover amenities and 
infrastructure which have demonstrable utility above and beyond that 
which is required for the development as determined by the City.  
Amenities and infrastructure must have a recognizable direct value to 
the residents living in the authority or consist of major pieces of public 
infrastructure that have utility for more than just the development as 
determined by the City Council. 

 
4. Length of time: City prefers NCAs with a time limit that has the effect of 

eliminating the additional charge sooner rather than later.  
 



5. The City will consider proposals to convert a home owner association 
(HOA) charge to a single New Community Authority (NCA) charge that is 
the same or lower total charge overall.  The purpose is to allow an HOA 
to be converted to an NCA which could produce tax benefits for purposes 
of holding land while not increasing (and hopefully decreasing) the 
previous HOA fee.  

 
6. The City may approve primarily residential new community authorities 

containing a preferred minimum of 100 total gross acres.  Because of the 
nature of the development, mixed use or commercial/industrial 
authorities may be smaller as determined by City Council. 

 
7. Amount: The city prefers NCA millage to be 5 mills or less. If a millage 

above this amount is proposed extraordinary circumstances and 
supporting reasoning shall be documented by the developer in the 
request. In these cases, the City may approve millage up to 7.5 mills.   
 

8. Disclosure: The city requires disclosure to potential renters, property 
owners, and other effected parties of the NCA charge.  This can be 
recorded separately upon the property and deed or as otherwise required 
in the sole discretion and direction of the city. 
 

9. The City will not approve developer initiated NCAs in areas where a City 
NCA is contemplated, unless the NCA addresses the City’s infrastructure 
needs. 
 

SECTION 2.  City Council will periodically review these guidelines to 
address changing conditions. 
 

SECTION 3.   That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage.  
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 10    DATE: 10/14 /2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-58    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR SAWMILL DELAWARE INVESTMENTS TO 
CONSTRUCT A NEW BUILDING (INNOVATION CENTER) AT 109 INNOVATION 
COURT ON APPROXIMATELY 6 ACRES ZONED M-1 PMU (LIGHT 
MANUFACTURING DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on October 2, 
2019.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
  
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-58 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED 
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
SAWMILL DELAWARE INVESTMENTS TO CONSTRUCT 
A NEW BUILDING (INNOVATION CENTER) AT 109 
INNOVATION COURT ON APPROXIMATELY 6 ACRES 
ZONED M-1 PMU (LIGHT MANUFACTURING DISTRICT 
WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of October 2, 2019 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for 
Sawmill Delaware Investments to Construct a New Building (Innovation Center) at 
109 Innovation Court on approximately 6 acres zoned M-1 PMU (Light 
Manufacturing District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (2019-2076). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Sawmill Delaware Investments to Construct a New Building (Innovation 
Center) at 109 Innovation Court on approximately 6 acres zoned M-1 PMU (Light 
Manufacturing District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 
water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

3. The dumpsters shall be enclosed by a brick wall and have wood doors 
painted or stained to match. 

4. Any ground and building signage shall achieve compliance with the 
minimum zoning requirements and the approved Gateways and Corridors 
Plan. 

5. The landscape plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

6. If any trees are removed during construction, they shall be replaced per 
Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

7. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the City. 



8. A building permit shall not be issued until a copy of the permanent and 
temporary FAA determination is provided to the City and any conditions 
required by the FAA are met. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 10/14/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-59    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST 
BY GRDEN LLC FOR WINTERBROOKE PLACE CONTAINING 263 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 100.6 ACRES ZONED R-3 PMU (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF PEACHBLOW ROAD JUST 
EAST OF THE BELMONT PLACE SUBDIVISION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 4-3 on October 2, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-59 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY GRDEN LLC FOR 
WINTERBROOKE PLACE CONTAINING 263 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 100.6 ACRES 
ZONED R-3 PMU (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF PEACHBLOW 
ROAD JUST EAST OF THE BELMONT PLACE 
SUBDIVISION. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of October 2, 2019 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by Grden LLC., 
for Winterbrooke Place containing 263 single family lots on approximately 100.6 
acres zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of Peachblow Road just east of the 
Belmont Place Subdivision (PC Case 2019-2136). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by Grden LLC., 
for Winterbrooke Place containing 263 single family lots on approximately 100.6 
acres zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of Peachblow Road just east of the 
Belmont Place Subdivision, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out 
through the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments 
regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary and 
subject to modification or change based on the final technical review 
by the Engineering Department. 

2. The developer shall be responsible for any improvements and/or 
financial obligations of the traffic impact study per the City Engineer 
and County Engineer. 

3. The primary access to the development shall be from Peachblow Road 
at a proposed roundabout to be constructed in the future by the 
Delaware County Engineer (a fair share amount would be paid by 
developer per the County’s requirements) for the subject development 
and the proposed developments located south of Peachblow Road in 
the County. If the County Engineer does not construct the proposed 



the roundabout prior to the developer initiating construction of the 
subject development, the proposed access point to Peachblow Road 
shall be a traditional intersection with a stop sign. 

4. All retention ponds shall be setback from a public road per the City 
Engineer. 

5. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and 
setback requirements in the approved development text. 

6. The single-family houses shall comply with the minimum 
architectural standards in the approved development text and per 
applicable sections of the current zoning code. 

7. All the active open space areas shall have amenities approved by staff 
and the tot lots shall be exceptionally well programed and appointed 
with a variety of amenities across the development including areas for 
active field space. The final details of each tot lot and active open 
spaces shall be reviewed and approved with every Final Development 
Plan and Final Subdivision Plat. All open spaces shall be owned and 
maintained by the homeowner’s association but allow public access. 

8. A minimum 3-6-foot-high mound with landscaping shall be located 
along both sides of Winterbourne Drive to be consistent with the 
roadway treatment in the Communities of Glenross and a 3-6 high 
mound with landscaping shall be located along Peachblow Road to be 
consistent with the treatment along Belmont Place. 

9. Along the eastern property line adjacent to the existing single-family 
house, a buffer shall be established that would require a 5 to 6 high 
mound with a continuous screen of landscaping with minimum 6-
foot-high evergreen trees planted 20 feet on-center in staggered 
alignment. The setback shall range from 25 feet at lot 220 to 230 feet 
at lot 227 (on the Preliminary Subdivision Plat) per the approved plan 
in Ordinance 19-31. 

10. Along the northeastern and north property line to existing single 
family house, the setback and buffering from lot 220 (east) to lot 215 
(north) (on the Preliminary Subdivision Plat) shall have a  25 foot 
setback that shall require a 3 to 4 high  mound with a continuous 
screen of landscaping with minimum 6 foot high evergreen trees 
planted 20 feet on-center in staggered alignment per the approved 
plan in Ordinance 19-31.  

11. A street tree plan shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

12. Any tree removal and/or replacement requirements shall achieve 
compliance with the approved development text.  



13. The existing tree lines along the north and eastern perimeters of the 
development shall be preserved and placed in a tree preservation 
easement along with the preserved trees located west of Winterbourne 
Drive. 

14. The bike paths along both sides of Winterbourne Drive and the north 
side of Peachblow Road shall be installed by the developer and 
located within an easement dedicated to the City and shall be 
maintained by the Homeowner’s Association. 

15. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Chief Building Official and achieve compliance with all zoning 
requirements prior to final subdivision plat approval of each phase. 

16. The development shall be in the Delaware South New Community 
Authority, subject to the single-family lot transportation fee ($1,000 
per dwelling unit) in effect at the time of building permit issuance and 
is subject to the South East Highland Sanitary Sewer additional 
capacity charge of $3,200 per dwelling units. 

17. For the 52-foot-wide lots, one-story houses shall be a minimum 1,600 
square feet and the two-story houses shall be a minimum1,800 
square feet to be consistent with the smaller width lots in the 
Communities at Glenross. 

18. The developer is identifying storm sewer easements in open space 
areas (reserve areas) that requires mounding, tree planting and/or 
tree preservation per the landscape and tree preservation plans of the 
approved Preliminary Development Plan. These easements shall be 
relocated in rear yard of the adjacent single-family lots or the 
developer shall receive permission from the Utility, Engineering and 
Planning departments to allow mounding and trees within these 
storm water easements.  

19. Lot 127 shall be widened to a minimum 106 feet (80 feet x 33% = 26 
feet additional lot width) to achieve compliance with minimum corner 
lot width requirements.  

20. Winterbourne Drive shall be extended to the northern property line 
(to connect with the Communities at Glenross) prior to building 
permit approval of the 208 single family lot (currently Phase 6 of the 
proposed development) per the City Engineer.   

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 



 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































City Manager Report 20191014 
 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: October 10, 2019 
 
 
1. Summer Aquatics Program 

 
Following Council’s discussion of this at its September 23 meeting, I 
reached out to Darren Hurley, the city’s previous Parks and Recreation 
Director. Unfortunately, Mr. Hurley was unable to attend Council’s 
October 14 meeting due to a conflict. He did offer, however, offer to 
provide the city with input as part of the Needs Assessment being 
undertaken by Pros Consulting. Given Mr. Hurley’s considerable 
experience as a parks and recreation professional and his Delaware 
experience, his input would be very valuable. 
 
As to the city reestablishing its summer aquatic program beginning in 
2020, staff continues to recommend against making this move now. The 
Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment, which will begin in early 
November, will provide the city with the information it needs to determine 
the feasibility of reestablishing a Parks and Recreation Department 
(which would include aquatics), beginning in 2021. 
 
I’d be happy to discuss this further as part of my City Managers report. 

 
2. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
3. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached  
 
4. Meetings 
 September 23 
  Rotary 
  City Council 
 September 24 -25 
  Washington D.C. APA Award 
 September 26 
  Annual State of the Schools 
  Strand Premier Event 



City Manager Report 20191014 
 

 September 30 
  Domtar Tour and Proclamation 
  CIP Work Session 
 October 1 
  Robert L. Milligan Lecture 
 October 3 
  OWU Groundbreaking of 1st phase of Residence Hall 
 October 4 
  COMMA 
  Unveiling of Hayes Statue 
 October 7 
  Rotary 
 October 9 
  Elmer Curry Honorary Sign Dedication 
   
  
  



October 
 

 

2019 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
  1 2 3 4 5 

   Planning Commission 
6:30 pm 

   

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
  Sister City 6:00 pm Civil Service 

Commission 3pm 
BZA 6:30 pm- Canceled 

   

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
 City Council 7pm   Airport Commission 

6:30 pm 
  

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
 Parking and Safety 6pm Shade Tree 6:30 pm HPC 6:30 pm    

27 28 29 30 31   
 City Council 7pm      

       
       

 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – October 14, 2019 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2019 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Classic Steel Body Performance Based Economic Incentive 

Grant 
$6,000 Economic 

Development 
Ohio Assoc. of Chiefs of Police Assessment Center for Police Sgt. 

Promotional Process 
$5,400 Police 

The Aero-Mark Company, LLC 2019 Pavement Marking Maintenance 
Program  

$52,252.52 Public Works 

Stawser Paving Company 2019 Pavement Maintenance Program 
(Local) 

$514,763 Public Works 

    
 


	01 20191014 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20190923 council minutes
	03 20190930 cip minutes
	04 20190409 sister city minutes
	05 20190814 civil service minutes
	06 20190724 hpc minutes
	07 20190828 hpc minutes
	08 20190904 planning minutes
	11 fact sheet res 19-40 2020-2024 cip
	12 res 19-40, 2020-2024 cip
	13 CIP General Fund Summary Oct 2019
	14 CIP Street Improvements Oct 2019
	15 fact sheet res 19-47  NCA Guidelines
	16 res 19-47, NCA Guidelines
	17 factsheet ord 19-58, 2019-2076 Innovation Center CPFDP
	18 ord 19-58, 2019-2076 Innovation Center CPFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-58
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-58
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	19 2019-2076 cpfd staff report
	20 fact sheet ord 19-59, 2019-2136 Winterbrooke Place PSP
	21 ord 19-59, 2019-2136 Winterbrooke Place PSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-59
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-59
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	22 2019-2136 grden staff report
	23 city managers report 20191014
	24 October 2019
	25 contract approval 20191014
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – October 14, 2019
	2019
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	$6,000
	Classic Steel Body
	Performance Based Economic Incentive Grant

	$5,400
	Ohio Assoc. of Chiefs of Police
	Assessment Center for Police Sgt. Promotional Process

	$52,252.52
	The Aero-Mark Company, LLC
	2019 Pavement Marking Maintenance Program 

	$514,763
	Stawser Paving Company
	2019 Pavement Maintenance Program (Local)



